
the following day a provisional Jewish Govern
ment would begin to function in accordance with
the spirit of the United Nations resolution and
the Jewish State would thus be a reality. The
only threat to its existence would come from
the Arab State. The problem before the As
sembly was not how to implement the resolu
tion of 29 November 1947, but how to prevent
the Arab States from violating their Charter
obligations and defeating the will of the United
Nations.

The meeting rose at 12.52 p.m.

HUNDRED AND TWENTY-SECOND
MEETING

Held at Lake Success, New York, on Thursday,
22 April 1948, at 3 p.m.

Chairman: 1vIr. T. F. TSIAXG (China).

7. Continuation of the general debate
on the question of the future govern
ment of Palestine

Sir Mohammed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakistan)
declared himself in favour of the French pro
posaP for the safeguarding of the Holy Places
in Jerusalem and suggested the establishment
of a local council to be composed of an equal
number of Jewish, Christian and :Moslem re
presentatives.

Turning next to the fundamental problem of
Palestine, the representative of Pakistan sketched
a brief outline of recent developments.

In the opinion of certain delegations, he said,
resolution 181 ( II), adopted by the General As
sembly on 29 November 1947, constituted a
solution which was just and which ought there
fore to be carried into effect. It was surely ironic
that that so-called just and fair decision should
be the cause of the present conflict.

In the quarter-century during which it had
been the concern of the League of Nations and
later the U J1ited Nations, the Palestine problem
had proved insoluble. The cause of those re
peated set-backs was that a tissue of contradic
tions lay at the root of the problem and that up
to the present no one had tried to disentangle
its main threads. On the contrary, the attempt
had always been made to reconcile conditions
that were irreconcilable. The cause of the con
flict lay not in the fact that a certain number
of Arabs and Jews inhabited the same country,
but in the fact that someone had set them against
each other.

The fundamental cause of the conflict was to
be found in the contradictory promises made by
Great Britain, during- the First \Vorld 'Var, to
the Arabs as well as the Jews, so that both
peoples remained convinccd that they were
morally justified in whatcver they did. To the
Arabs, the British had promised the independ-

I Sec 121st Il1ceting; also documcnt _,\/C.l/280.

demain, un Gouvernement juif provlsOlrc: en
trera en fonctions, conformement a l'csprit de
la resolution des 1\at ions C nies, et l' Etat juif
deviendra aimi une rcalitc. La seu!e menace
qui s'()ppose a son existence ne PCllt 6nancr que
des Etats arabes. Le probIcme allqucl l':\s~e;n

bIee doit faire face maintenant n'cst pas de
trouver les moycns d'appIiqucr la rc~()lution du
29 novembre 1947, mais d'emp~('hcr ks Etats
arabes de violer les ohligations de la C:h~1fte et
de mettre en cchec la volontc des l\;"atiolls Cnics.

La seance cst levce a 12 h. 52.

CENT-VINGT-DEUXIEME SEANCE

Tellue a Lake SurrcH. l\lezc-rork, le jeudi
22 al'ril 19-18, a 15 hcures.

Prhident: ~I. T. F. TSIAXG (Chine).

7. Suite de la discussion genera le sur la
question du gouvernement futur de
la Palestine

Sir ~Iohammed ZAFRCLLAH KHAX (Pakis
tan) se declare en fa';eur de la proposition
fran~aise pour la sauvegarde des Licux saints a
Jerusalem] ct SUgglTC l'etablissemcnt cl'un con
seil local compose d'un nombre cgal de repre
sentants ju:fs, chretiens et musulmans.

Abordant ensuite le fond mrme du problcme
de la Palestine, le delegue du Pakistan trace un
bref aper~u de scs recents developpements.

ScIon ccrtaines delegations, la I esolution
181l II) adoptec par l'Assemblec gcncrale lc 29
nO\"cmbre 1947 constitue une solution juste qui,
par consequent, devrait ctre mise a execution.
N'est-il pas ironique que ce soit cette decision
que ron dit equitable qui provoque les conflits
actuels?

Depuis un quart de siccIe qu'il a preoccupe
la Societe des Nations et maintenant Ies Nations
U nies, le probIcme palestinien s'est avere in
soluble. La cause de ces echecs repetes est qu'a
la source du problcme se trouve un tissu de
contradictions et que personne jusqu'a present
n'a essaye de degager clairement les donnees
fondamentales du problcme. Au contraire, on
a wujours essayc de conciIier des donnees in
conciliablcs. La cause du conflit ne reside pas
dans le fait qu'un certain nombre d'Arabcs et
de Juifs habitent le mcme pays, mais dans It.:
fait que queIqu'un 1cs a dresses les uns contrc Ies
autres.

La cause fondamentale du conflit se trouve
dans les promesses contradictoire.<; bites par la
Grande-Bretagne. pendant la premiere ~uerre

mondiaIc, aus"i bicn aux Arabes qu'aux Juifs,
de tcIIe manirre quc les deux peup1cs continucnt
a noire qu'ils 0nt moralcment raison clans tout
cc qu'ils font. Aux Arabes, les Britanniques ont

1 \·ojr la 121L'l1le seance ct aussi Ic document
:\j C.l j2RO.

47



err.e of Palestine, and when the Arabs, after
having fulfilled their own commitments, de
manded th~ fulfilment of the British promiscs
at the end of the war, they had been told that
that promise was not an international obligation;
it had obviously been impossible to convene an
international body in the middle of the war. To
the Jews, the British had promised a "national
home" in Palestine without the consent or
knowledge of the Arabs, a pledge \vhich there
fore was in no sense binding upon the latter.
~loreovcr, the British Government had assured
the Arabs that the promise made to the Jews
would in no way affect the economic and politi
cal interests of the indigenous population of
Palestine. Therein lay the inconsistency: if the
Balfour Declaration was consistent with the
pledges given to the Arabs, it could only be in
terpreted as a promise of the establishment of a
Jewish national home within an independent
Arab Palestine. But the Jews interpreted the
Balfour Declaration as a promise of the establish
ment of an independent Jewish State in Pales
tine. It was plain that one of the t wo sides must
give way, and that it was the one which came
latcr that would have to yield, since Great
Britain had no right to pledge to the Jews any
thing it had already pledged to the Arabs.

To solve this problem, the report of Sub
Committee 2 of the Ad 11oc Committee on the
P~jcstinian question (document A/AC.14/32)
had proposed that the question should be re
ferred to the ~nternational Court of Justice for
an opinion. That proposal had been rejected by
twenty-one votes to hventv, and meanwhile the
conf1i~t continued. The Ar~bs believed thcy \vere
being denied what had been promised them,
and the Jews continued to believe that the
pledges made to them had not been fulfilled.

It was said that a rcalistic view must be taken
and that the situation in Palestine must be re
garded as an accomplished fact. But what were
the facts? There were in Palestine 1,200,000
Arahs, ~loslem and Christian, and about
650,000 Jews.

The pol itical rivalry between those two groups
could be remo\'Cd by applying the principle of
the right to self-determination of peoples set
out in Article 1, paragraph 2, of the Charter.
But thf' United Nations had not proceeded in
that mann~'r in the case of Palestine. It was
argued that the Jews occupied a special position
in Palestine. The only peculiarity of the situation
was that gn per cent of the Jewish population
in Palc:-·tine had been brought in from abroad
and foIsted upon Palestine by one of the most
insidious forms of aggression. In the face of
this fact. hi~;toric considerations were invoked
to justify]c\\'ish immigration. but on the other
hand, it \\'as asserted that judgments shoulrI be
ha~r:d on the present situation. Those two argu
ments were mutually contradictory. The only
wa" to be realistic was to take as a ba~i~ the
rdativc importance of the respective population

promis l'independance de la Palestine, et lorsque
les Arabes, apres avoir rempli leurs propres en
gagements, ont demande aprcs la guerre l'exe
cution des promesses britanniques, on leur a
repondu que cette promesse n~ctait pas une obli
gation intcl'nationale, alol's qu'il etait evidem
ment impossible en pleine guerre de rassembier
un organe international. Aux J uifs, les Britan
niqlles ont promis un "foyer national" en Pa
lestine, sans I'assentiment ou la connaissance
des Arabcs, promesse qui, par consequent, ne
lie ces dcrniers en aucune maniere. D'autre
part, le Gouvel'nement bl'itannique a assure les
Arabes que la promesse faite allX Juifs n'affec
terait en rien les intercts economiques et poli
tiques des populations indigenes de Palestine.
C'est ici que git la contradiction: si la Declara
tion Balfour s'accorde avec les promesses faites
aux Arabes, elle ne peut s'interpreter que
comme une promesse d'ctablir un foyer national
juif a l'interieur d'une Palestine arabe inde
pendante. ~lais les J uifs interpretent la De..
claration Balfour comme une promesse d'eta
blissement d'un Etat juif independant en Pales
tine. Il est evident que rune des deux parties
doit ceder l et que c'est le dernier venu qui doit
ceder puisque la Grande-Bretagne n'avait pas
le droit de promettre aux Juifs quelque chose
qu'elle avait deja promis aux Arabes.

Pour resoudre ce problcme, le rapport de la
Sous-Commission 2 de la Commission ad hoc
chargee de la question palestinienne (document
A/AC.14/32) avait propose que la question
soit renvoyee pour avis a la Cour intemationale
de Justice. Cette proposition fut rejetee par 21
voix contre 20, et entre temps le conflit a con
tinue. Les Arabes se croient frustres de la pro
messe qui leur a cte faite, et les Juifs continuent
a penser que 1'0n n'a pas rempli les engagements
pris a leur egard.

On dit qu'il faut ctre realiste et considerer la
situation en Palestine comme un fait accompli.
:Mais quels sont les faits? Il y a en Palestine
1.200.000 Arabes, musulman: et chrctiens, et
a pen prcs 650.000 Juifs.

La rivalitc politique qui regne entre ces deux
groupes pourrait ctre resolue en appliquant le
principe du droit des peuples a disposer d'eux
mcmes enonce a l'Article 1, paragraphe 2, de la
Charte. Mai~ les Nations Unies n'ont pas procede
de ceUe manicre dans le cas de la Palestine. On
soutient que les Juifs occupent une situation
particulicre en Palestine. La seule particularitc
de ceUe situation est que 90 pour 100 de la
population juive actuelle en Palestine sont cons
titues par des apports etrangers qu'une agrcs
sion d'une espece des plus insidieuses qui soient
a impose a la Palestine. A l'encontre de ce fait,
on invoquc des considerations historiques pour
justifier l'immigration juive, mais, d'un autre
cote, on nous dit de raisonner sur la base de la
situation actuelle. ees deux argumcnts se con
trecliscni: mutuellement. La seulc manicre d'ctre
realiste est de se fander sur l'importance des

48



groups and once that criterion was adopted, to I

hold to it and apply it impartially.

The fact was that the Mandatory Power had
reached the conclusion that it was unable to
fulfil the Mandate as it was then being inter
preted, that is, the formation of an independent
Jewish State in Palestine. It had therefore
brought the question of Palestine to the United
Nations. The United Nations had appointed a
Special Committee whose report 1 contained pro
posals by the majority and proposals put for
ward by the minority. The Jews had accepted
and the Arabs had rejected the proposals of the
majority. Both had rejected the proposals of
the minority. 'Vas that not some indication of the
direction in which a solution of the problem
would have to be sought?

The Ad Hoc Committee (·n the Palestinian
question set up by the General Assembly had
established two Sub-Committees, one to make a
report based on the majority proposals, and the
other on the minority proposal to establish a
unitary State. Sub-Committee 2 was composed
of representatives of Arab States, Afghanistan
and Pakistan, and was headed by the representa
tive of Colombia. In the opinion of the Chair
man, that composition was not such as to make
a compromise solution possible. He suggested
that the composition should be changed, but that
reasonable suggestion, which had been accepted
by the Sub-Committee, had been contemptuously
turned down bv the Chairman of the Ad Hoc
Committee. .

The United Nations had therefore tried to
resolve the problem on the basis of an extreme
proposal: partition of Palestine into two in
dependent States with economic union. But that
solution, which had been described as just and
fair, in fact conferred no real sovereignty on
either of the two States. Jerusalem, the very
heart of Palestine, would belong to neither of the
two independent States. The economic matters
of communications, customs duties, tax collec
tion, development of water resources, of in
dustry and agriculture, would be in the hands of
an economic board composed of three Arab re
presentatives, three Jewish representatives, and
three representatives appointed by the United
Nations, who would thus have a deciding vote
and would therefore be the real sovereigns of
the two States. It was admitted that the Arab
State would not be financially liable unless it re
ceived an annual subsidy of £4,000,000 from
the Jewish State. All th~t did not portend any
real sovereignty; on the contrary it was a mon
strous solution.

The representative of Pakistan then described
what those two independent States would hc.
Palestine, a country of approximately 1O~OOO
square miles, would be divided into eight parts
- three Jewish, three Arab, the city of JafTa

populations respectives et, une fuis ce critcre
adoptc, de s'y tenir et de l'appliquer impartia
lement.

Le fait est que la Puissance mandataire est
arrivce a la conclusion qu'elle se trouvait dans
l'impossibiIitc de remplir le 1fandat dans le sens
ou on veut l'interpreter aujourd'hui, c'est-a.-dire
la constitution en Palestine d'un Etat juif indc
pendant. C'est pour eette raison qu'elle a saisi
les 1\ations C nies de la question palestinienne
Les Kations Unies ont crce une Commission
spcciale dont le rapport 1 contenait des propo
sitions approu\"(:~s par la majoritc et des pro
positions formulces par la minoritc. Les Juifs
ont aeeeptc et le~ Arabcs ant rejetc les propo~i

tions de la majoritc. Tous les deux ont rejet~

les propositions de la minoritc. N'y avait-il pa'
la une indication sur la direction dans laquelle
il fallait chercher la solution du problcme?

La Commission ad hoc chargee de la question
palestinienne a crcc deux Sous-Commissions,
l'une pour faire un rapport sur les propositions
de la majorite, et la seconde, sur la proposition
de la minoritc tendant a ctablir un Etat uni
taire. La Sous-Commission 2 ne comprcnait que
des representants des Etats arabes, ainsi que le
I'Afghanistan et du Pakistan, et etait presidee
par le representant de la Colombie. Cette com
position, de l'avis du President, n'ctait pas de
nature a rendre possible une solution de com
promis. Aussi, ce dernier suggera d'en modifier
la composition, ce qui fut accepte par la Sous
Commission, mais cette suggestion raisonnable
fut rejetee avec mepris par le President de la
Commission ad hoc.

Les Nations Unies se sont donc efforcees de
resoudre le probleme en prenant comme base la
proposition extreme: partage de la Palestine
en deux Etats independants avec union econo
mique. ~1ais, en fait, cette solution que l'on
qualifie d'equitable ne confcre aucune souve
rainete reelle a aucun des deux Etats. Jerusalem,
le c{Cur meme de la Palestine, n'appartiendrait
a aucun des deux Etats independants. Quant
aux questions economiques, les communications,
le service des douanes, la perception des impots,
le developpement des rcssources hydrauliques,
de l'industrie et de I' agriculture, elIes seraient
entre les mains d'un Conseil economique com
pose de trois representants arabes, trois reprc
sentants juifs et trois representants nOinmes par
les Nations Unies, qui disposeraient done d'un
vote decisif et seraient par consequent les \Tais
souverains des deux Etats. Il est admis que I'Etat
arabe n'est viable du point de vue financier que
s'il rec;oit une suhvention annuelle de 4.000.000
de IhTes sterling de I'Etat juif. Tout cela n'est
pas l'indire d'une sOU\'erainete "critable et rons
titue, au contrairp, une solution monstrueuse.

Le representant du Pakistan dccrit ensuite de
quelle manicre se presenteraient ces deux Etats
independants. La Palestine. pays d'environ
10.000 milles carn~s. serait divisee en huit par
tics: trois juives, trois arabes. la ville de J affa

1 ~('(' O[f.cial Rrrord.~ of tlt(' :;('((Itld USS1ClIl nf tlle 1 Voir Jrc: [)(lC1/l17rnt.~ affirirh dr la dC1(.t'ihl1C session
(;nlcra! Asscmhly, Supplement ~o. 11. de I'AssclIlbUc phlcra!c, Sttpplement No 11.

49



and the city of Jerusalem. They were told that
this partition had its disadvantages but that it
was not unjust. The partition of Palestine was
being justified, morever, by pointing out that in
a unitary State the Jews would be permanently
reduced to the status of a minority. But if
they agreed that the Jews and Arabs constituted
two separate communities with two different
cultures and two distinct nationalities, neither
of these two communities should be reduced to
the position of a permanent minority. According
to the partition plan, however, there would be
within the Jewish State 508,000 Jews and
435,000 Arabs, whereas there would be ap
proximately 10,000 Jews and 800,000 Arabs in
the Arab State. Furthermore, with the sole ex
ception of the sub-district of Haifa, which con
tained the city of Tel Aviv, the Jews nowhere
constituted a majority of the population. As to
the three parts which would make up the Jewish
State, in Eastern Galilee, there were 86,200
Arabs and 28,750 Jews. In the central region
there was a Jewish majority of 469,250 over
306,760 Arabs. To the south, in the Negeb
area, there were only 2,000 Jews, whereas there
were at present more than 80,000 Arabs.

How could it then be said that those opposed
to such a proposal were committing an act of
aggression?

But injustice went further since 435,000
Arabs, who were reduced to a permanent
minority within the Jewish State, had to I
face a miserable economic future. It was a
well-known fact that the land acquired by the
Jews in Palestine had been bought by the Jewish
National Fund and not by individuals, so that
once the land had passed into Jewish hands it
would remain there forever. The 435,000 Arabs,
who, because of the partition plan, found th~m

selves within the Jewish State, owned at the
moment more land than the Jews. But this land
would inevitably be transferred to the Jewish
immigrant colonies, and the Arabs, who could
only live by agriculture, would end up by be
coming a landless agricultural proletariat.

If, on the other hand, the Jews were to be
come a minority within an Arab State, they
would be able to resist the Arabs economically,
as they were superior in economics, science,
technique and in other respects. But what would
become of the 435,000 Arabs in the Jewish
State after they had lost their land? How could
they earn their living since the Jewish colonists
were fOfbidden to employ Arab labour?

It had been claimed the the partition de
cision was fair and was the example of the
conscience of the civilized world. It was certain,
however, that the necessary majority would not
have been obtained, had it becl1 known that
this decision could only be put into effect by
force. It was also strange that on 29 November!

'Sec Officiol R('(oyds of t!1r s('(ond session of tlte
General Assembly, I,!enary meeting Ko. 128.

50

et la vilIe de Jerusalem. On nous dit que cette
division offre des inconvenients, mais qu'elIe
n'est pas injuste. D'autre pa11, on justifie le
partage de la Palestine en faisant ressortir que,
dans un Etat unitaire, les J uifs se verraient
reduits d'une fa\on permanente au rang d'une
minorite. l\lais, si nom: admettons que les Juifs
et les Arabes constituent deux communautcs
distinctes, avec deux cultures difIcrentes et deux
nationalites separees, ni rune ni l'autre de ces
deux communautcs ne devrait ctre rcduite a la
position de minorite permanente par rapport a
l'autre. Pourtant, d'apres le plan de partage,
il y aurait, a l'interieur de I'Etat juif, 508.000
Juifs et 435.000 Arabes, tandis que, a l'inte
rieur de I'Etat arabe projete, il y aurait environ
10.000 Juifs et 800.000 Arabes. De plus, a
l'exception de I'unique sous-district de Hai"fa,
dans lequel se trouve la ville de Tel-Aviv, les
Juifs ne constituent nulle part une majorite de
la population. Quant aux trois sections qui
constitueraient l'Etat juif, la Galilee orientale
comprend 86.200 Arabes et 28.750 Juifs. Dans
la zone centrale, il y a une majorite juive de
469.250, contre 306.760 Arabes. Au sud, dans
la region du Ncgeb, il n'y a que 2.000 Juifs,
alors qu'il s'y trouve encore a l'heure actuelIe
plus de 80.000 Arabes.

Comment peut-on pretendre, dans ces con
ditions, que celui qui rcsiste a un tel projet
commet un acte d'agression?

Mais l'injustice va plus loin, car un sort
economique miserable est reserve aces 435.000
Arabes reduits a l'etat de minorite permanente
a I'interieur de I'Etat juif. C'est un fait connu
que les terres achetees par les J uifs en Palestine
sont acquises par le Fonds national juif et non
par des individus, de telle sorte qu'une fois les
te.rres passees entre les mains juives, elles y res
tent a jamais. A I'heure actuelle, les 435.000
Arabes qui se trouveraient a l'interieur de l'Etat
juif en vertu du plan de partage pos:;cdent plus
de terres que les Juifs. l\1ais inevitablement, ces
terres seraient transferees a des colons immi
grants juifs. Et les Arabes, qui ne peuvent vivre
que de I'agriculture, finiraient pas devenir un
proletariat agricole sans terre.

Si les Juifs, au contraire, etaient dans la
situation d'une minorite dans un Etat arabe, ils
pourraient resister economiquemcilt aces der
niers car ils leur sont sup~(ieurs de3 points de
vue cconomiquc, scientinque, techrique et au
tres. l\-1ais qu'd.dvicndrait-il des 4:)5.000 Arabes
dans l'Etat juif, Guand :.Is auraient perdu leurs
terres? Comment ~agnuaicnt-ils leur vie puis
qu'il est interdit au colon juif d'employer de la
main-d'reuvre arabc?

On pretend que ceUe decision de partage est
equitable et qu'elle est l'expression de ht cons
cience du monde civilise. Or~ il est certain que
la majoritc rcquise n' aurait pas cte atteinte si
1'0n avait su que cctte dccision nc pourrait ctrc
mise a execution que par la force. Il c."t aussi
ctrange quc lc 29 novcmbre1 un certain nombrc

1 Voir Ie~ f)oclIIllt"Ills officids dr la drllxihlle session
f I · 1 1/ . ,., 1··)·" , !' "(C •. .1',1','/11 't',' !l<'1l0·U{(', _Kt'illl' ~t'al1cc [l t'l11l're.



a certain number of representatives had voted
for partition, whereas on 26 November l they
had declared that they were opposed to partition
as unjust. There could be no doubt that had
the vote been taken on 26 November the neces
sary two-thirds majority in favour of partitiOl'
would not have been obtained. But various de
vices had been used to delay the vote. It would
be courting unpopularity to approach the rep
resentatives who had changed their minds dur
ing tho<;;e three days. They should rather be pitied
as they had found themselves in an embarrassing
situation, caught between the dictates of their
conscience and the strong pressure which was
being put on them and their Governments.
Those facts were so well-known that the par
tition plan could be called a United States rather
than a United Nations decision.

It had also been said that the Palestine ques
tion should be considered in terms of the prob
lem of displaced Jews in Europe. But why should
the Palestine Arabs alone be expected to pay for
Hilter's sins? Undoubtedly the problem of re
habilitating them should be solved, but even the
UNSCOP and Sub-Committee 2 of the Ad Hoc
Committee ori the Palestinian Question had re
commended that that problem be solved on an
international level. Sub-Committee 2 had re
commended,2 in the first place, that the dis
placed Jews should be enabled to return to the
countries from whkh they had been expelled
and that the rest should be accepted by the States
1\fembers of the International Refugee Organiza
tion on a pro rata basis of their absorbing
capacity. That proposal had been rejected even
bv Canada, Australia and the United States
of America.

'Vhat was the present position? Under the
General Assembly resolution, a commission had
to be set up. The present Palestine Commission
had no legal standing as it had been set up in
breach of the provisions of the General Assembly
rules of procedure, which laid down that mem
bers of a commission must be elected by secret
ballot, whereas the members of the present Com
mission had been appointed by the President
of the Assembly.

Chaos and anarchv would break out in Pales
tine on 15 1\Iay when the 1\1andate expired, and
so far no legal body had been established to
replace it. Nowhere in the Charter could any
provision be found authorizing the use of force
to carry out any decision for partition or any
thing else. It had been maintained that any
recommendation which had obtained a two
thirds majority in the General Assembly
was endowed with sufficient legal authority. That
was a very dangerous doctrine which meant
that any resolution, whether in accordance with
the Charter or not, need only obtain a two
thirds majority to be valid.

The Jewish Agency had gIven notice that it

I ~('e Official RNM'ds (If flI(' s('(rmd sesS:,Jn (If the
GCIlO'al Asselllbly, plenary meetings Xos. 124 an (I 123.

2 ~('e dnctlll1cnt A/AC.Hj32. r('~()It1ti(ln Xr,. IT.
page 59.

de delegues ont vote pour le partage, alors que
le 26 novembre\ ils avaient declare que le par
tage etait injuste et qu'ils s'y opposeraient. Per
sonne ne peut douter que, si le vote avait eu
lieu le 26 novembre, la majorite requise des
deux tiers n'aurait pas ete obtenue en faveur
du partage. 1\fais on a procede a des mana::uvres
pour retarder le vote. On serait mal venu a
adresser des reproches aux delegations qui ont
change d'avis au cours de ces trois jours. C'est
plut6t de la commiseration que l'on eprouve a
leur endroit, car elles se sont trouvees dans une
situation embarr~ante, pri~es entre leur cons
cience et la forte prc.'sion a laquelle lcurs Gou
vernements et dIes etaient soumis. Ces faits sont
c?:mus au point que l'on peut qualifier la de
CISIOn de partage, de decision des Etats-Unis,
et non des Nations Unies. .

On dit aussi que l'on doit envisager aussi le
probleme de la Palestine en fonction du FTO

bleme des personncs juives deplacees en Europe.
~lai'5 pourquoi les Arabes de Palestine doivent
ils seuls payer les mefaits d'Hitler? Sans doute,
le problcme de leur rehabilitation doit etre
resolu, mais mcme· la Commission speciale des
Nations Unies pour la Palestine et la Sous
Commission 2 de la Commission ad hoc ont re
commande que cc probleme soit resolu ~ur le
plan internaticdal. La Sous-Commis.c;;ion 2 a re
commande qu'en premier lieu les Juifs deplaces
puis.~ent retoumer dans les pays dont ils avaient
cte expulscs et que les autres soient acceptes par
les Etats 1\fembres de 1'0rganisation interna
tionale pour les refugies au prorata de leur
capacite d'absorption. Cette proposition a ete
rejetee, meme par le Canada. l'Australie et le~
Etats-Unis.

Quelle est la situation actuelle? En vertu de
la resolution adoptee par l'Assemblee generale,
une commission devait etre instituee. L'actuelle
Commission pour la Palestine n'a pas d'exis
tence legale puisqu'elle a ete instituee au mepris
des dispositions du reglement de l'Assembler
qui prescrivait que les membres de commissions
doivent etre elus au scrutin secret, alors que les
membres de cette Commission ont ete dcsignes
par le President de l'A."Semblce.

En Palestine regnent le chaos et l'anarchie,
alors que le 1\1andat expire le 15 mai et que
jusqu'ici aucun organe legal n'a encore ete crec
pour le remplacer. Nulle part dans la Chartc
on ne trouve de dispositions conferant l'autoritr
necessaire a la mise en application par la force
cl'une decision quelconque de partage ou autre.
On a maintenu que toute recommandation qui
reunit en sa faveur les deux tiers des voix 1e
l'Assemblee generale se trouve revetue d'une
autorite Iegale suffisante. C'est la une doctrine
trcs dang-ereuse qui signifie que toute resolution,
qu'elle soit conforme ou non a la Charte, doit
simp:ement obtcnir les deux tiers des voix pour
ctre valable.

L'Agence juive a fait savoir qu'elle creerait

1 '"nir les JI,)om/C1/fs (lfficid~ de la dntx)me srssi(ln
de 1'.,1 SS(' IIIMI'(' Qrnh-ale. 124eme ct 123l'l11e seances
i'I~t1 iere' s. . .

~ '"(,ir c!(j':tll1H:lJt A/AC.14/32. resolution Ko n,
l'a~f' ~~.

51



would establish a provisional Government in
Palestine as from 16 May in accordance with
the spirit of the General Assembly resolution.
That did not represent the execution of the As
sembly's resolution, since that provided for the
partition of Palestine into two States with eco
nomic union. Such unilateral decision was not in
accordance with the General Assembly resolu
tion. Even the frontiers Letween the two States
had not been exactly determined.

To what would the proclamation of a Jewish
State lead? Certain countries might recognize
it. The Palestine Arabs could, for their part,
proclaim, on 16 ~Iay, a provisional Government
for the '\Thole of Palestine invoking the right of
a people to self-determination. They could invite
the Jewish representatives to attend the consti
tuent as~embly and to take part in drafting a
constitution, and proceed with their plan even
if the Jews declined. Some countries might re
cognize this new Arab State. This was a fair
sket..:h of the confusion which would ensue.

This short survey of the stages through which
the United Nations had passed in its efforts to
solve the Palestine question was necessary in
order to reach a decision on the future of Pales
tine. If the moral basis which would satisfv the
true conscience of the world could be fOUIld, it
would probably appear that force was not neces
sary to carry out a just and equitable solution.
Even if force had to be used it should not be
difficult to find a solution as soon as the con
science of the world was set at rest.

Mr. HOUDEK (Czechoslovakia) emphasized
the atmosphere of anxiety in which the discus
sions were taking place. He recalled that the
Palestine question was before the General As
sembly for the third time in a single year. The
objective and well-documented report of the
Special Committee should form the basis of
future discussions and decisions. In this report
extreme solutions had been avoided.

He read the recommendations regarding
"Termination of the ~Iandate",1 "Independ
ence"2 and "Economic unity". 3 These principles
had led the majority of the Committee to favour
the solution of partition, while three members
favoured a federal State, and one abstained.

During the first special session his delegation
had requested the appointment of a special C0111

mittee on which it had agreed to serve. The
delegation of Czecho~lovakia was in sympathY
with the Arab countries and understood their
aspirations: nor did it forget the sufTerings of
the Jews. Czechoslovakia ~ad voted ill favour
of the resol1ltion of 29 November 1947 and its
point of virw had not altered since the '~encral

1 ~('e n(+:(:',r! Rf("rds /)( t!rr s('c(111d .1(',1'.1';,111 nf th.'
(;ol(ml AS.~I'l1I!'"'' ~lIrT'lpll1C'l1t Ko. 11. \'n11l1~lC L
I'~lI!C 42. .

: Thid .. p;lg'(' 4~.

I "":d, T':1~(, 4~.

a partir du 16 mai un gouvernement provlSOlrc
en Palestine, seIon I'esprit de la resolution de
l'Assemblee. Ccla ne signifie pas la mise en
lruvre de la resolution de l'Assemblee, puisque
ceIle-ci prevoyait le partage de la Palestine en
deux Etats avec union economique. Une teIle
decision unilatcrale n' est pas conforme a la re
solution de l'Assemblee. Les frontieres memes
des deux Etats n'ont pas ete determinees avec
precision.

QueUe5 seraient les consequences de la pro
clamation d'un Etat juif? Il est possible que
certains pays le reconnaissent. De leur cote, lc~

Arabes de Palestine pourraient, le 16 mai, pt 0

damer un gouvernement provisoire pour l'en
semble de la Palestine, en se fondant sur le
droit des peuples a disposer d'eux-mcmes. Ils
pourraient inviter les representants juifs a se
presenter a une assemblee constituante pour
participer a la redaction d'une constitution et
poursuivre kur dessein malgre le refus des Juifs.
Certains pays pourront reconnaitre cc nouvel
Etat arabe. Ce tableau montre bien la confusion
qui regnerait alors.

Cette hrcve revue des etapes que les Nations
U nies ant parcourues dans leurs efforts pour
rcsoudre le probleme palestinien crait nccessaire
avant qu'elIes decident de l'avenir de la Pales
tine. Si l'on trouve les fondements moraux qui
donneront satisfaction a la veritable conscience
du monde, on decouvrira qu'il n'est sans doute
pas besoin de la force pour mettre en reuvrc
une solution juste et equ~table. Et meme s'il
etait besoin d'employer la force, il ne serait pa"
difficile de la trouver a cc moment, des l'instant
Oil la conscience du monde serait tranquiIle.

~f. HOUDEK (Tchecoslovaquie) souligne l'at
mosphere d'anxiete dans laquelle se deroulent
les debats. Il rappelIe que la question palesti
nienne se trouve pour la troisicme fois en I'es
pace d'un an devant l'Assemblee generale. Le
rapport objectif et bien documentc de la Com
mission speciale pour la Palestine doit cons
tituer la base des deliberations et des decisions
futures. Dans ce rapport, les solutions extremes
avaient ete ccartees. ~'L Houdek donne lecture
de~ recommandations rclatiYes ala "Fin du man
dat"l, a l' "Independance"2. et a l' "Unite eco
nomique'··1. Ces principes avaient conduit unt'
majorite de la Commission a se prononcer en
faveur de la solution du partage tandis que trois
des membres de la Commission se pronon\aient
en faveur de l'Etat fedcral et que 1'un d'entrc

, h .eux s a stenatt.
Le representant de la Tchccoslovaquie aV?;t

demande 10rs de la premiere ses.sion extraordi
naire de nommer une commission spcciale. ~ont

il accepta de fairc partle. La delegation Je la
Tchccoslovaquie sympathise avec le;;; nation<;
arahrs eiont cIle comprcnd les aspirations. Elk
n'ollhIie pas nGn plus les ~ouffran(es des Juifs.
La TchCco~.;l(waq\1ic a Yotc en favcur de la
f(~S()llltion du 29 nO\Tmhre 1947 et son point df

1 \'rir 1('<; n,'OI1l1(71!, (1(fictrls de la d"luir1'1(, s('s.~;,l!1

ri,' l'.1scCl1r1,/h :1,:11//'(/1.. , Supplemcnt Ne. 11, yolume I.
r;l ("(' 4().

~ [1,id. rage 47.
~ [hid., pa;:;c 40.

52



conditions that justified it had not changed. If
violence had increased, it was only a matter of
degree; and moreover, it was at Lake Success
that the cause must be sought, in inaction or in
a kind of passive resistance by certain members
to the General Assembly's recommendation.

The report of the United Nations Palestine
Commission (document A/532) had greater
weight. It stated that in spite of the provisions
of the resolution ot 29 November, the Security
Council had not provided that Commi~sionwith
armed assistance or guidance and instructions.
Consequently, the Commission "had to decide
for itself its future course".

Although deprived of its backing, the work of
the United Nations Commission had been fruit
ful, considering the circumstances, and the
reason for disappointment was not to be found
in any inherent defect in the resolution of 29
November, as at present claimed by certain
States that had used their influence to gain votes
for partition, but rather in the lack of good will
shown by most of the members of the Council
in putting this solution into effect.

The delegation of Czechoslovakia believed
that the solution of partition was the best and
most practical. A Jewish home in Palestine was
not necessarily anti-Arab in character. nor was
it irreconcilable with the national and political
aspirations of neighbouring Arab countries.
:Moreover, this was the decision reached by the
majority of the United :Nations and was also
the view shared by the Soviet Union and the
United States, \...hose support had given such
good promise for a peaceful settlement of the
Palestine problem.

He reminded the Committee that during the
General Assemhly's plenary meeting on 26
l\nvrmher 1q,~-7.1 thr Fniteci States representa
tive had said that no solution woulci ever be
found that would meet WIth the acceptance of
hoth the Arabs and the Jews. The United States
was at the present time proposing provisional
trusteeship (document A/C.l /277). and their
position was to accept no solution that could not
he put into efTert without hein,g imposed on the
Jews and Arabs against their will. '\That was the
reasor: for the change of attitude by the United
States on the en' of termination of the ~fan

date?

In what rcsnect. moreonT. was the solution
of trusteeship 1 preferahle to partition. since
probahly neither Je,,'s nor Arabs would accept
it with enthw,iasm? If force had to he used in
any case. ,vhat was there to choose between
trllstership and partition. 'Vhilr the Committee
continued to eOll iYOcate. the numbcr of "ictims
was increasing.

On 8 Octoher 1947. 'fr. ~ f as:lrvk had

I Src 0(i;,'i,rl RN,',-ds (.,( thr SNOJld SNS1,1'1 /If the
1;"'10'171 .ISS,'il!""', 1'1l'Il;H~' mceting Xo, 124,

53

vue n'a pac;; varie car les conditions gcncra!e."
qui l'avaicnt justifiee n~ont pas change. Si les
violences ~e sont aggran::es, cc n~cst la qu'unc
difference de degre et, de plus, c'e~t a Lake
Succes~ qu~il faut en cherchcr la cam:c~ JZlIlS

l'inaction ou dans une sorte de resistance passin·
de certains membres a la recommandation de
l',Assemblee generale.

Le rapport de la Commission des :'\ation~
Unies pour la Palestine (document A/53:2) est
du plus grand poids. On y lit qu'en dcpit de cc
qu~avait prevu la resolution du 29 novcmbrc.
le Conseil de securitc n'a fourni a cctte Com
mission ni assistance armce ni directives et im
tructions. La Commission a done "du dccider
elle-meme de la ligne de conduite a adopter".

Bien qu'elle ait cte privce d'appui, l'acti(,'n
de la Commission des Nations Unies a Ctc frllc
ttlP'Jse, compte tenu des circonstances, et la
cause des deceptions eprouvces ne sr trou\'e pa."
dans un vice intrinsl'qlle de la l' n!lltion <.Ill

29 novembre, comme le prctcndrnt aujollrcl'hui
certains des Etats qui ont use de lrur InOuencp
pour faire "oter en faveur du partage. mai"
dans la mauvaise volonte qu'ont apporh~e la
majorite des membres du Comeil a la mise en
application de cette solution.

La delegation de la Tchecoslovaquie comi
dcre que la solution du partagc est la meillcurc
et la plus pratique. Un foyer juif ~n Palestine
n'a pas necessairement un caractcre antiarabc
et n'est pas non plus inconciliable avec les aspi
rations nationales et politiques des nations
arabes voisines. C'cst d'ailleurs aimi qu'en a
decide la majorite des Nations Unies. Tel etait
notamment le point de vue commun de l'Union
sovietique et des E~ats-Unis dont l'appui faisait
si bicn augurer d'un rcglement pacifique du
problcme palestinien.

~L Houdek rappelle qu'a la seance plenicrc
de l'As."emhlee genef:lle du 26 novcmbre 1947 1

le representant des Etats-Unis declarait qU~0T1

ne trouverait jamais de solution acceptable a
la fois pour les Juifs et pour les Arabes. Or. les
Etats-Unis proposent aujourd'hui une t11te11e
prm'isoire (document A/C.1/277) et kur po
sition est de n'acceptcr aucune solution qui ne
puisse ctre executee sans etre imposee aux Juifs
et aux Arabes contre leur volontc. Que11e c."t
donc la ra1,on du changement ci'attitucle des
Etats-Unis a la veille de la terminaison du
mandat?

En quoi la solution de la tutcIle. d':lutre part.
est-elle prNerahlc au partage plli"que probable
ment ni les Juifs ni les Arabes ne l'acccptrront
d'enthousiasme? Si. de tOllte mani<''fe. la force
doit etrc employee. quclle difTerence y a-t-il entre
la t11te11e et 1(' p:lrtage? Pendant q1le 1'0n tergi
,·ersc. le nomhre des victimes s'accroit.

Le R octohre 1947. ~f. ~rasaryk cvnqilait le

I Vnir kc; fl(l(11111tllt,~ (l ffiriels dr /n dnl.l·il~m,' YSS!MJ
dt 1'/IS,C071"'rt r.hlh'<1!r, 1:?4eme c;e:ll1,e p!cnii,rt>,



referred to the "pipe-line" ~ document
A/AC.14jSR.8) of Jewish blood that crossed
Europe from 1933 to 1945 and had expressed
his regret, in this regard, at not having faced
the danger of Hitlerism before it was too latp
He had paid hom;).g-e to the Jews; not those
who lived in comfort, but those of the ghettos,
the gas chambers and the concentration camps.

At this time, the British were already to
evacuate Palestine and refused to apply any
solution put forward by the United N atians. It
was for the latter to find means of implementing
its decision, for any delay, besides increasing the
the tension and leading to chaos in Palestine,
would impair the prestige of the United Nations.
The United Nations was at present in danger,
and there was not a moment to be lost in re
establishing its Cl edit and acting speedily in con
formity , ... ith the decision of 29 November.

There was stiII time to remedv the omissions,
whether they were voluntary or not; but any
delay, or the reversal of a decision only five
months old on the eve of the expiration of the
~Iandate would be a sign of confusion.

~fr. Sumner 'VelIes pointed out in an article
in the New York Herald Tribune of 30 ~1arch

1948 that the United States' change ef front
only increased the danger of war in the :Kear
East, dealt a severe blow at the United Nations
and collective security and at the confidence
of the world in the United States.

Any delay would painfully recall the non-in
tervention of the League of Nations during the
tragic period marked by events in ~Ianchuria,

Abyssinia and Spain and which ended in the
ruin of the League itself.

He concluded by pointing out that he was
only making a preliminary statement.

~Ir. KYROU (Greece) stressed the urgency of
the Palestine question. During the second or
dinary session of the General Assembly, the
Greek delegation 1 had made it clear why it ,vas
opposed to the partition plan, namely, that it
was unreasonable to adopt a solution which was
not accepted by the Arab population, the domin
ant element in Palestine. Such a step was con
trary to the interests of both parties and to
that of peace in the Holy Land. Blood was being
shed in holy places which were the object of
world-,... ide veneration.

At the same session, the Greek delegation had
protested against the idea of adopting a p!an at
any cost and had urged the necessity of finding
a solution acceptable to both parties. Kow, how
enT, it was the Greek delegation which called
for immediate and definite -action and it W(iS.

therefore, prepared to consider the proposal of
the r 11 ited States delegation with an op2n mind
and to share in a construetiw' examination of the
plan outlined there.

1 <,t- () 1;:,'i,1! f?,'«(lrds of tlr .. s",'o/ld St'SSi"1l of tht'
(,oi,'/<11 .(~s('II1h1y_ !,kll:ir~'l1lcc(:l1g Xo. 124,

54

pi/Jeline (document AIAC.14jSR.8) de sang
juif qui a traverse l'Europe de 1933 a 1945 et
exprimait son regret de n'avoir pas, en ce qui le
concerne, fait face au peril hitlerien avant qu'il
ne soit trop tard. Il rendait homf"'~ge ai.tX Juifs,
non a ceux Qui vivent dans le bien-ctn~, mais a
ceux des ghettos, des chambres a gaz~ o.es camps
de concentration.

Aujourd'hui, les Britanniques ctant prcts a
evacuer la Palestine et se refusant a mettre en
application toute solution des Nations Unies, il
appartient a celles-ci de trouver une methode
d'exccution de leur dcci:;ion, car tout retard.
outre qu'il accroitrait la tension et amcnerait le
chaos en Palestine, porterait attein.e au prestige
de l'Organisation des Nations Unies. Celle-ci est
aujourd'hui en peril et il n'y a plus un moment
a perdre pour rctablir son credit en agissant
rapidement en conformitc de la decision du 29
novembre 1947.

Jl est encore temps de remedier aux negli
gences, qu'elles aient ete commi,es volontail'e
ment ou non, mais tout delai. ou bien le ren
"ersement d'une dhlsion vieille sculemcnt de
cinq mois, a la veil1e de l'expiration du :l\Iandat,
serait un signe de confusion.

~1. Sumner \Velles, dans un article du New
York 1-1erald Tribune du 30 mars 1948, a SOll

ligne que la volte-face des Etats-Unis ne faisait
qu'accroitre le danger de gucrre dans le Proche
Orient, portait un coup severe aux NatioDS
Unies, a la securite collective et a la confiance
du monde dans les Etats-Unis.

Tout delai rappellerait facheusement la non
intervention de la Societe des K ations au cours
de la periode tragique que jalonncrent les evene
ments de :l\Iandchour;e, d'Ethiopie, d'Espagne,
et qui se termina par la ruine de la Societe elle
meme.

M. Houdek conclut en indiquant que son
intervention n'a qu'un caractcre preliminaire.

M. K YROU (Grcce) souligne l'urgence de la
question palestinienne. Deja au cours de la
dcuxicme session ordinaire, la delegation de
la Grcce 1 s'etait cxpliquce sur son opposition a
la formule du partage: il n'cst pas raisonnablc
d'adopter une solution que n'accepte pas l'elc
ment dominant en Palestine, la population
arabe. Cela est contraire a la fois a rint~rct des
deux parties et acdui de la paix en Terre sainte.
Aujourd'hui, le san~ coule sur ccs Lieux saints.
objet de la veneration generale.

La delegation grecque avait, lors la deuxicmc
ses..<;ion ordinaire, protestc contre une politiquc
d'adoption d'un plan a tout prix et insiste sur
la neces""ite de trouver une solution accept;lbIe
pour les deux parties. Aujourd'hui, pourtant,
c'est la dclrg~.t;on grecque qui vient dire qu'il
faut agir et le plus tot pm;<;ih1c. Ene ctudier:1
done la proposition de la dclc~atiol1 elcs Etat~

Cnis sans idee prcconc:ue et s'efT"rcera de pz\r
ticipcr a un cxamen constrllctif de cc plan.

1 \-r,ir le" ! ),)(1nI/Olts 0(1.. :,,1.0 d,' la d,'/(,l"it~JI/!' s/'ssi'l/1
d.. I'.'/ss,'mh/,:/' !/h;,:nl/-', 1~ l,"I:,c ~l"lm'" plenil\rc.



Mr. Kyrou protested against the parallel
which had been drawn between the non-imple
mentation of the resolution of 29 Kovember and
other resolutions of an absolutely different
ch; lcter. \\That the Assemblv had done 011 29,
November was to recommend, by thirty-three
votes to thirteen, the partition of a pre-existing
territorial entity and the establishment of a
new State against the will of the majority of the
populatirn concerned.

On the Gther hand, the resolution setting- up
the Balkan Commission 1 had merely called for
improved relations between neighbouring States,
an aim conforming to the spirit of the Charter.
The intention was to put an end to action con
trary to international obligations.

It was thus impossible to draw a parallel be
tween the Arab refusal and that of countries
which had not conformed to the resolution
adopted on 1 October 1947 by forty votes to
six. In the case of the Balkan Commission, the
disregard shown for elementary obligations de
riving- from the Charter was a real danger for
the future of the United Nations, whereas no
such danger could arise from measures for a
peaceful settlement of the Palestine q llt'stion.

In conclusion. the Greek delegation expressed
the hope that the vital interests of the two com
munities involved would be protected and that
bloodshed would be brought to an cnd in the
Holy Land.

~fr. 1\IuXQZ (Argentina) expressed his satis
faction with the solution found bv the Chairman
to the question of procedure' raised by the
submission of the United States delegation's
draft resolution (document A/C.l /278), and
welcomed the continuation of the general debate.

For the moment, he would onlv sav that the
French plan2 for the safety of th~ Holy Places
should be considered by the Committee forth
with. \Vhile reserving his attitude towards the
substance of the Palestine quc~tion. he was glad
that the French delegation had given definite
shape to the suggestions made on that subject
by the Swedish representative.:1 The question of
Jerusalem should be dealt with before that of
Palestine as a whole, on which latter matter his
delegation would express its opinion later.

:Mahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypt) was astonished
at the assertion that the United Nations would
collapse "'hen it was merely a case of failure to
implement a simple recommendation on the
T)artition of Palestine bv force of arms. Such. .
tears were expressed by those same persons who
showed but little respect for the resolutions of

I See O/ticia! Records of the s(C(md S{'SS:Oll of the
(;01('/"0! Asst'lIIbly, Rcso!l/tiollS, Xo, 1f)l)(Il) page 12,

z Sec 121q ll1et'ting; also d"Cllll1cnt :\/C.I/280
a Sec 11~th meeting.

·rv1. Kyrou s'cleve contre le rapprochement
qu'on a voulu faire entre la non-execution de
la recommandation du 29 novembre et d'autres
cas absolumcnt difTerents. Le 29 novcmbre,
trente-trois voix contre trcize se sont prononcces
en faveur elu partagc cl'une entite territorialC'
preexistantc et de l'ctabli""ement d'tm noU\'cl
Etat contre la \"olonte de la majorite de la
population intcres~{e.

A.u contraire, la resolution relative a la cf(~a

tion cl'une comllli...,sion speciale des ~atiom

C nil'S pour les Balkans] ne \"isait qu 'a l'ame
lioration des relations entre pays \"oisins, cc qui
est conforme a l' ':5pr;t de la Charte. 11 s' agissait
de mettre fin ~l des activitl'.,; contraires aux
obligations intcmationales.

Il est donc impossib!e d'ctablir un paralIele
entre le refus arabc et cdui des pays qui ne se
sont pas conformcs a la resolution adoptee le
21 octobre 1947 par quarante \"oix comre six.
Le mepris temoignc. dans le cas de la Cor, .
nission pour lcs Balkam, a l'cgard des obliga
tio~;; ~Hmentaircs prc\"ues dans Li Charte con~

(tue un danger pour l'a','enir de I'Organi"ation.
~ fais celIe-ci ne saurait ctre mise en peril par
des (;fforts qui tendent a une solution pacifique
du problcme palestinien.

La delegation grecque espcre que les intcrcts
vitaux des deux communautcs 'it.'ront saU\'c
gardcs et que l'effusion de sang prendra fin en
Terre sainte.

~I. ~Ic ~oz (A.rgentine) se felicite de la solu
tion apportee par le President de la Commission
au problcme de procedure soulevc par la
presentation du projet de resolution de la dele
gation des Etats-L'nis (dccument A/C.l/278)
et du .fait que le debat general peut ainsi se
poursmvre.

1\1. J\1uncz se borne pour le moment a
declarer que la proposition franc:aise relative
aux Lieux saints:! den'ait ctre discutee sans delai
par la Premiere Commis..<;ion. Sans prejuger le
fond de la question palcstinienne, ii exprime sa
satisfaction que la delegation fran\aise ait con
cr{tL"C k" suggestions de la SUl'de: a cc: sujet.
La questilln de Jenlsalcm de\"rait ctre traitee
avant celIe de ]a Palestine dans SuJl em:cmble,
sur laquelle la delegation de l'Argentine se
reserve d'indiqucr ultcrieurement son point de
vue.

~Iahmoud Bey FA\\'ZI (Egyptc \ s'etonne que
I'on parlc d'tm efTondrement des Nations Unics
pour le cas Oll cc qui n ·c."t qu'une "implc re(0111
mandation relati\"c au partage de la Palestine
ne serait pas o:ccutc par la force des armes.
Ccs craintcs sont exprimres p;n ccux-la i11cmes
qui ne rcspectf'ilt gucrc lcs n~<.:()ll1ti()ns de~ N a-

1\'( ,ir le<; l'.,,'1I1I1t'llfs ()(fi,';,,!s cl,' !11 1I(1/.r:)I1/C session
d,' 1'.ISHII/l,!,;,' ::hlh'l1lc'-' N.;s,)!//t:'.-,u, Xn I00(II),
;';\,I.2T 12.

2 \"nir 1:1 l.?llllW «';111('(' et ;'.11""j le dr'CllTlWl1t .\ /('.1/21<0.
3 "(Iir 1;1 11~Cllll' ~(';\l1CC.

55



the United Nations and, in pal ticular, for those
adopted by the General Assembly. 'Vhat had
become of the resolutions on Greece, or Korea,l
on the treatment of Indians in the Union of
South Africa,2 and on displaced persons?3

Certain delegations wanted to force the Arabs
to absorb the great mass of displaced persons.
How many such persons had their own countries
welcomed?

The representative of New Zealand had
spoken' with some heat in favour of the parti
tion, but there had been no suggestion that that
country, with a population no larger than the
population of Palestine, and territory ten times
as large, should itself take to heart the advice
proffered to others.

The representative of the Jewish Agency had
alleged that the independence of Palestine was
hein~ delayed by the Arabs. D Palestine, however,
had (,lways helonged to the Arabs, albeit the
Jewish "visitors" now claimed it as their own.
It was a Jewish iI1\'asion which had held up the
independence of Palestine, which, moreover,
had been recognized in principle O\'er twenty
five years ago. It was Jewish bitterness which
deprived the Palestine Arabs of rights enjoyed
by less civilized peoples.

rhe picture would have been quite otherwise
had the neighbouring Arab States helped, a." was
alleged, the Arabs of Palestine. In spite of con
tinual provocation, the Arabs of the neighbour
ing States had shown ac.hnirablc :,clf-restraint.
Only a small number of them had infiltrated into
Palestine, and throughout the Arab world Jews
had not been . 101ested and still enjoyed right
of sanctuary based on a spirit of toleration and
hrotherhood.

It ' ....as still being said that, after all, the reso
11I!ion for the partition of Palestine was adopted
despite Arab threats. Those w-called threats
were mcrrly statements displaying the greatest
foresi,t;ht. The Arabs of Palestine were a normal
people with normal reactions who naturally de
fended their country, their dignity, and their
homes.

There was an Arab saying to the effect that
injllstice should be comhatted as it was worse
than the flames of war. And yet the Arabs ,,,,ha
had li\"ed in their countrv long-er than the. ,

majority of other nations had in theirs, merely
dc:-;irrd to live in peace. The United Nations
had been ~ct up to secure peare, hut there could
be no peace \\ithollt justice, ancl the Charter
clearly ,gllar:mtced the' right vf peoples to sel£-

1 ~t't' ()";'-:'r1! f((("l"ds /J( fir,' ",'(II/Id s,'.n:',!H "( lire
(;,'lItTu/ ./s.il'Jlll{\" l~es(i!u/-"I/.I'. X,!, 112(11), page 1(),

'~ce N,.,\·,'!ufi"II.1' nrl,1/'lt'd 11\' lire (;ellcra! Assc/IlN\'.
~(,Ct 'lld l,a rl ti rsl :;c s .;i'!l1, rcsohi lion 44(T), pave ()f), '

~ lh:'d .. r('~nlllli"n (,2(1). pa~c '1i,
• ,':;C'l' 118111 11l('('tin~

• ~! t 121 q l>1('Clil1;::

56

tions U nies et particulierement celIes de l'Assem
blee generale. Qu'est-il advenu des resolutions
sur la Grece, la Coreet, le traitcment des
Hindous dans I'Union Sud-Africaine2 et les per
snnncs deplacces~?

Certaines delegations veulent imposer aux
Arabes d'absorber la masse des personnes de
placees. ~1ais combien leurs propres pays en
ont-ils accueilli?

La Nouvelle-Zclande parle4 avee chaleur en
faveur du partage de la Palestine; mais nul ne
propose que ce pays qui, sur un territoire dix
fois plus etendu que la Pakstine, n'a qu'une
population egale a eeIle de ceUe dernicre, appli
que lui.,.mcme les conseils qu'il pl.Jdigue aux
autres.

Le representant de l'Agence juive a pretendu
que l'independance du pays se trouvait retardee
par les Arabes de Palestine'-'. ~lais ce pays a
toujours ete le leur, bien que le "visiteur" juif
le rcclame commc sien. C'est l'invasion juive
qui a retarde l'indcpendanee de la Palestine,
reconnue en principe il y a plus de vingt-cinq
ans. C'est l'apretc des Juifs qui p!'ive les Arabes
de Palestine de droits dont jouissent des pcuples
moins civilises.

Les choses se passeraient autrement si lcs pays
arahes voisins aidaient, comme· on le pretend,
les Arabcs de Palestine. Or, en dcpit de provo
cations rontinuelles, les Arabes des pays voisins
ont fait preuve d'une maitrise d'eux-mcmes
admirable: un trcs petit nombre cl'entre eux se
sont infiltrcs en Palestine. Dans les autres pays
arabes, les Juifs n'ont pas ete molestes. lIs con
tinuent pp beneficier du droit d'asile, qU'0;1

leur aceorde dans la tolcr,mce et la fraternitc.

L'on repete encore qu'apres tOllt, la resolu
tion relative au partage a ete adoptee par
l'Assemblce generale en depit des menaces des
Arabes. ~Iais ces pretendues menaces n 'etaient
que des declarations temoignant de la plus
grande clairvoyance. Les Arabes de Palestine
sont des ctres normaux, aux reactions normale.-;,
qui defendent leur pays, leur dignite, leurs
foyers.

Un proverbe arabe dit que, devant l'injustice,
il faut combattre, car l'injustice est pire que les
flammes de la guerre. Et pourtant les Arabes,
qui ont habite leur pays plus longtemps que la
plupart des autres nations, ne veulent que la
paix. Les Nations Unies sont faites pour sauve
garder la paix, mais il n'y a pas de paix dans
l'injustice et la Charte est claire en ce qui con
cerne le droit des peuples a dispo~er d'eux-

1 Voir les {)ocIlH"l1ls oDicicls dc !a dCIl.rihllc s('ss/ml
dl' l'AssrmbICc ghlhalc, Rho!uliol1s, No 112(1n.
p:1 L'e 1fl.

: \'(lir ks Rho!lllions adopters I'ar l'AssembU(' g/I1;·
rate pendant la se('ol1r1e partie de sa premiere session,
rl'<;ollltinn 44 (I). page of).

a [hid., resollltion (12(l), page 1)7.
4 \.oi r la 118\'nw sbn('e,
~ Voir la 121cme se;mce.

I



determination. The Arabs were in the majority
in Palestine, and were prepared to grant to the
Jews all reasonable guarantees, including those
required by the Charter. The imr' ~1 •.• ~1tation of
such guarantees would be ensured and super
vised by the United Nations. T11e Jews of
Palestine ",:auld remain in contact with the
rest of the world and had no rea<;on to fear
they would not be treated as equals.

Mr. EL-KHOURI (Syria) stated that the
Haganah artillery on ~Iount Carmel wa~ firing
on Arab dwellings in Haifa. Hundreds of homes
had been destroyed and ~~oslem and Christian
AI'<1bs massacred. The British authorities pre
vent"d Arab forces from entering Palestine to
help the Haifa Arabs and took no steps to pre
\'cnt the massacre.

The policy of the Jews . Palestine was to
annihilate the Arabs on the territory of the so
called Jewish State and they had proceeded to
carry out the policy everywhere, notably in
Tiberias. The Jews wished to show what they
could do by themselves e\'en before their State
was establi~hed. There was much outcry for the
protection of the stones of the Holy Pla~es while
defenceless human beings were being massacred.
In Haifa there were tens of thousands of Arabs
and of the 160~OOO souls in that town, one
quarter were Christians, one-quarter ~Ioslems,

and onc-half Jews.

Now that the intentions of the Jews were
dear, would those deleg8.tions which had been
in favour of partition now be prepared to revise
their opinion and, by re-adhering to ~he prin
ciples of the Charter, help the United Nations
in its peril.

~ir. GARcIA GRA:'\'ADOS (Guatemala) wished
to reply to the representative of Syria, without
,goin,g into the substance of the Palestine ques
tion. The ,var in Palestine was a sad reality and
it was the Arabs who had provoked it. It was
useless to lament over war incidents when the
Arabs themselves. by opcnin;! fire on Jerusalem
and Jewish communities, had also killed inno
cent people.

~ f r. SA:'~so:'\-Tr.RA:'\ (Kicaragua) recalled the
tragic days of 1935 when ~fllssolini threatened, .
to go ahead with his plans, with or without
Geneva. As it was, the United Nations was de
liberating when human lives were being lost and
the situation brooked no delay.

The Nicaraguan delegation felt that a definite
plan should be evolved as soon as possible to
stop the shedding of blood and to remedy the
loss to the prestige of the United Nations. His
drlegation was ready to adopt immediately any
plan which would put an end to the massacres
in Palestine.

The meeting rose at 5.30 p.m.

memes. Les Arabes sont une majoritc en Pales
tine et sont d'ailleurs prcts a accorder aux Juifs
toutes ga:-anties conformes a la raiwn et a la
Charte. Ccs garantics elles-mcmes seraient sous
la sauvegarde et le controle des Nations Unies.
De toute manicre, les J uifs de Palestine reste
raient en contact avec le monde exterieur. Ils
n'ont aucure raisu:l de craindre de ne pas ctre
traites en egaux.

M. EL-KHOURI (Syrie) declare que les canom
de I'Haganah tirent du mont Carme1 sur le."
demeures des Arabes de Halfa. Des centaines
d'entre e1les sont detruites, des Arabcs musul
mans et chretiens sont massacres. Les Britanni
ques empechent des forces arahes de penetrer
en Palestine poer secourir les Arabes a Halfa
et ne s'opposent pas au massacre.

Ainsi, la politique des Juifs tend-elle a l'an
nihila~ion des Arabcs qui se trouvent sur le
territoire du soi-disant Etat juif. Ainsi, Ies Juifs
ont-ils procede partout et notamment a Tibe
riade. Les Juifs tiennent a montrer ce qu'ils
peuvent faire par eux-mcmes avant mcme que
leur £tat ne soit etabli. On se preocupe de
proteger les pierres des Lieux saints alors que
des ctres humains sans defense sont massacres.
A H2.lfa se trouvent des dizaines de miIliers
d'Arabes puisque, sur une population de 160.000
ames, il y a un quart de chretiens) un quart de
musulmans et une moitie de Juifs.

Aujourd'hui que les intentions des Juifs sont
c1aircs, celI~s des delegations qui etaient en
faveur du partage ne vont-elIes pas redeveni:
fidcles a la Charte et secourir l'Organisation des
Nations U nies en peril?

~1. GARcIA GRANALOS (Guatemala), sans
aborder le fond de la question, tient a repondre
au representant de la Syrie. La guerre est, cn
Palestine, une triste rcalite et ce sont les Arabes
qui runt provoquce. Rien ne sert de se lamenter
sur des faits de guerre, car les Arabes eux-mcmes
quand ils ouvrent le feu Sllr Jerusalem et sur
les communautes juives font aussi d'innocentes
victimes.

~1. SANsoN-TERA~ (Nicaragua) evoque les
jours tragiques de 1935 OU ~fussolini parlait
d'alIer de l'avant avec ou sans Gene-ve. Au
jourd'hui, les Nations Unies dcliberent alors que
1'0n tue et que la situation ne souffre pas de
dclais.

La delegation du Nicaragua e.l;time qu'il faut
arriver a une solution aussi rapidement que
possible afin d'arrcter l'effusion de sang et de
remrdier a la perte de prestige des Nations
V nies. Cette delegation est. en cc qui la con
cerne, prcte a voter inmcdiatement sur une solu
tion qui mctte fin aux massacres.

La seance est levee a 17 h. 30.

57


